
City of Keene Planning Board 

AGENDA 

Monday, January 23, 2023 6:30 PM City Hall, 2nd Floor Council Chambers 

I. Call to Order – Roll Call

II. Election of Chair, Vice Chair and Steering Committee

III. Minutes of Previous Meetings – December 19, 2022

III. Final Vote on Conditional Approvals

IV. Extension Request

SPR-04-20 – Group Home – 169 Church St - Applicant and owner Christopher Farris, proposes to
construct a 5,690-sf two-story, duplex-style group home with a habitable attic and a maximum occupancy
of 24 people on the vacant lot located at 169 Church Street (TMP# 574-027-000). The site is 0.58 acres in
size and is located in the High Density District.

V. Public Hearings

SPR-790, Modification #1 – Site Plan – Summit Packaging Addition, 7 Krif Ct - Applicant Keach-
Nordstrom Associates Inc., on behalf of owner Summit Packaging Systems LLC, proposes to construct a
~6,400 sf addition to the existing 6,250 sf Summit Packaging Systems building and modify the parking lot,
landscaping, utilities, and stormwater management systems on the property at 7 Krif Ct (TMP #118-002-
000). The parcel is 1.98 acres and is located in the Industrial District.

Amendments to the Planning Board Subdivision Regulations – The Planning Board proposes to
amend its Subdivision Regulations in Article 19 of the City of Keene Land Development Code by amending
Section 19.2.4 of Article 19, “preservation of existing features” to include additional information about the
type of features that should be protected and possible requirements to protect those features; Section
19.2.8, “Utilities” to include additional requirements for lots that would not have access to City sewer; and
Section 19.3.2.B, “Perimeter Building Setback” of the Conservation Residential Development Subdivision
Regulations to require that existing tree canopy within the perimeter setback along external roads shall be
preserved.

VI. Master Plan Update Discussion

VII. Staff Updates
a. Overview of Administrative & Minor Project approvals issued in 2022.

VIII. New Business

IX. Upcoming Dates of Interest
• Joint Committee of the Planning Board and PLD – February 13, 6:30 PM
• Planning Board Steering Committee –  February 14, 11:00 AM
• Planning Board Site Visit – February 22, 8:00 AM – To Be Confirmed
• Planning Board Meeting – February 27, 6:30 PM

1 of 48



City of Keene 1 

New Hampshire 2 

 3 

 4 

PLANNING BOARD 5 

MEETING MINUTES 6 

 7 

Monday, December 19, 2022 6:30 PM Council Chambers, 

            City Hall  8 

Members Present: 

David Orgaz, Vice Chair  

Emily Lavigne-Bernier 

Roberta Mastrogiovanni 

Armando Rangel 

Harold Farrington 

Randyn Markelon, Alternate 

 

Members Not Present: 

Pamela Russell Slack, Chair 

Mayor George S. Hansel 

Councilor Michael Remy 

Gail Somers, Alternate 

Tammy Adams, Alternate 

Kenneth Kost, Alternate 

Staff Present: 

Jesse Rounds, Community Development 

Director 

Mari Brunner, Senior Planner 

 

 9 

 10 

I) Call to Order 11 

 12 

Vice-Chair Orgaz called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM and a roll call was taken 13 

 14 

II) Minutes of Previous Meetings – October 28, November 14, & November 28, 2022 15 

 16 

A motion was made by Harold Farrington that the Planning Board approve the October 28, 17 

November 14, & November 28, 2022 meeting minuets. The motion was seconded by Roberta 18 

Mastrogiovanni and was unanimously approved. 19 

 20 

III) Final Vote on Conditional Approvals 21 

 22 

Vice-Chair Orgaz stated this is a new standing agenda item in response to the recent “City of 23 

Dover” decision issued by the NH Supreme Court. As a matter of practice, the Board will now 24 

issue a final vote on all conditionally approved plans after all of the “conditions precedent” have 25 

been met. This final vote will be the final approval and will start the 30-day appeal clock. 26 

 27 

Senior Planner Mari Brunner stated there were no applications ready for a final vote. 28 

2 of 48



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

December 19, 2022 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 29 

IV) Public Hearings  30 

 31 
S-11-22 – Subdivision & Boundary Line Adjustment – 22 & 24 Rule St - Applicant 32 

Cardinal Surveying & Land Planning, on behalf of owners Richard W. & Carolyn M. Davis, 33 

proposes a lot line adjustment between the properties located at 22 Rule St (TMP #532-050-34 

000) and 24 Rule St (TMP #532-051-000) that would result in the transfer of 0.02-ac from the 35 

1.14-ac parcel at 22 Rule St to the 0.22-ac parcel at 24 Rule St, and a 2-lot subdivision of the 36 

parcel at 22 Rule St into one 0.48-ac lot and one 0.65-ac lot. The properties are located in the 37 

Low Density District. 38 

 39 
A. Board Determination of Completeness 40 

Ms. Brunner stated the Applicant has requested exemptions from submitting a grading plan, a 41 

landscaping plan, a lighting plan, and a narrative explaining how the proposal complies with the 42 

13 Site Development Standards. Staff have determined that the requested exemptions would 43 

have no bearing on the merits of the application and recommend that the Board accept the 44 

application as complete. 45 

 46 

A motion was made by Harold Farrington that the Planning Board accept Application S-11-22 as 47 

complete. The motion was seconded by Roberta Mastrogiovanni and was unanimously approved. 48 

 49 

B.         Public Hearing 50 

Ms. Wendy Pelletier of Cardinal Land Surveying addressed the Board. She referred to a Plan and 51 

pointed to 22 Rule Street, which is 1.14 acres in size, and 24 Rule Street, which is 0.22 acres; 52 

they are bounded by Rule Street and two paper streets (streets that are shown on paper but were 53 

not constructed), one is an extension of Barcomb Street and the other is an unnamed street. Ms. 54 

Pelletier stated this subdivision proposal is to add a third lot and adjust the lot lines. The 24 Rule 55 

Street property’s lot lines would be adjusted so it has more of a back yard instead of a side yard. 56 

The 22 Rule Street property will then be subdivided to create a new lot. There are steep slopes at 57 

the rear, but there is also a significant building area (mostly gravel). The site does have City 58 

services. This concluded Ms. Pelletier’s presentation. 59 

 60 

Mr. Harrington clarified there will be three lots after the subdivision with two houses and asked 61 

whether there was going to be a third house constructed. Ms. Pelletier stated there is no proposal 62 

for house construction at this time – it will be up to the owners when that will be done. 63 

 64 

Staff comments were next. Ms.  Brunner addressed the Board and stated the applicant’s proposal 65 

will create a third single family developable lot. There is no development proposed at this time, 66 

but a single family home could be constructed on this lot in the future. Ms. Brunner stated this is 67 

a two-step application; the first is a lot line adjustment and then a subdivision.  68 

 69 

The proposal is to transfer 0.01 acres of land from 22 Rule Street to 24 Rule Street. This proposal 70 

would make the property at 24 Rule Street conforming with reference to minimum lot size 71 

requirement. At the present time it is just under 10,000 square feet, where 10,000 square feet is 72 

the required minimum.  Once the subdivision is complete, all three properties will meet zoning 73 

requirements for minimum lot size (10,000 square feet).  74 

3 of 48



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

December 19, 2022 

Page 3 of 7 

 

Ms. Brunner noted as was stated earlier there are steep slopes on the developable lot. There are 75 

notes on one of the plan sheets regarding the different approvals that would be required from the 76 

City when development does occur. Staff is recommending those notes be shown also on the 77 

subdivision plan that gets recorded. In addition, there is a carport on the 24 Rule Street property 78 

which currently complies with zoning, but with the moving of the lot line it would become non-79 

conforming because it would be within the side setback. Staff recommends that carport be 80 

removed before final approval. There is also a shed where the new lot is proposed to be created, 81 

technically this is not allowed under zoning either because it becomes the primary structure. 82 

Hence, staff recommends removal of this shed as well be included as a condition of approval.  83 

 84 

With respect to the development standards, Ms. Brunner stated all three parcels have access to 85 

City sewer and water along Rule Street and this is noted on the plan set. Specifically, Note #6 86 

under Development Standard Sheet #1 - the Applicant specifies that all necessary permits will 87 

need to be obtained from the Public Works Department for sewer and water connections and 88 

notes that private on-site sewer ejector pumps may be needed to access City sewer lines. This 89 

standard appears to be met.  90 

 91 

With respect to Traffic & Access Management, Ms. Brunner stated no change is being proposed 92 

to the existing site access points to the two single family homes in existence. The applicant is 93 

proposing to remove the portion of the existing driveway that is on the new proposed lot and 94 

when that lot is developed they would need to obtain a new street access permit from the Public 95 

Works Department.  96 

 97 

With respect to Surface Waters & Wetland, there were no jurisdictional wetlands observed on 98 

either of the parcels and hence this standard does not apply.  99 

 100 

Ms. Brunner referred to the conditions of approval as outlined but added there is one other 101 

condition of approval staff is recommending. It came to staff’s attention in reviewing the Land 102 

Development Code (Chapter 22 – Public Improvements) – there is a requirement that says before 103 

the Board can sign any subdivision plan, the City Engineer must go out and inspect the lot 104 

monuments. This is not something staff has made as a condition of approval for subdivisions in 105 

the past, but it should be made a condition of approval for subdivisions in the City moving 106 

forward.  107 

 108 

The Chair asked for public comment next.  109 

 110 

Mr. Richard Davis of 176 George Street asked what the plan was for the land that is located next 111 

to his property; the right of way that has no ownership. Vice-Chair Orgaz stated this issue would 112 

not be the purview of the Planning Board and referred the comment to staff. Ms. Brunner stated 113 

staff will be happy to follow up with Mr. Davis. Mr. Davis stated he has already been in contact 114 

with the City regarding this issue and the City had advised that a deed could not be located for 115 

this property. Ms. Brunner stated she would be happy to discuss this with Mr. Davis at a later 116 

time as it does not have any impact on the proposal before the Board tonight.  117 

 118 

With no further public comment, Vice-Chair Orgaz closed the public hearing. 119 

 120 

4 of 48



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

December 19, 2022 

Page 4 of 7 

 

C. Board Discussion and Action 121 

A motion was made by Harold Farrington that the Planning Board approve S-11-22 for a 122 

boundary line adjustment between the properties at 22 Rule St (TMP #532- 050-000) and 24 123 

Rule St (TMP #532-051-000) and a 2-lot subdivision of the parcel at 22 Rule St, as shown in the 124 

plan set identified as, “2-lot Subdivision & Boundary Line Adjustment, Lots 532- 050-000 & 125 

532-051-000, 22 & 24 Rule Street, Keene, NH 03431” prepared by Cardinal Surveying & Land 126 

Planning at a scale of 1 inch = 30 feet on November 10, 2022 and last revised on December 1, 127 

2022 with the following conditions precedent prior to final approval and signature of the plans 128 

by the Planning Board Chair:  129 

1.  Submittal of four (4) paper copies, two (2) Mylar copies, and a digital copy of the final 130 

plan set.  131 

2.  Submittal of a check in the amount of $51.00 made out to the City of Keene to cover the 132 

cost of recording the final plat at the Registry of Deeds.  133 

3.  Removal of the existing carport and the relocation/removal of the existing shed on the 134 

property at 24 Rule St subject to a final inspection by City Staff.  135 

4.  Inspection of lot monuments by the Public Works Director or their designee following 136 

their installation or the submittal of a security in an amount deemed satisfactory to the 137 

Public Works Director to ensure that the monuments will be set.  138 

5.  Submittal of a revised plat to be recorded at the Registry of Deeds that includes the City 139 

of Keene Development Standard Notes shown on Sheet 1 of the plan set. 140 

 141 

The motion was seconded Roberta Mastrogiovanni and was unanimously approved. 142 

 143 

WITHDRAWN - Change of Governmental Land Use – RSA 674:54 regarding a proposed 144 

charter school on the property located at 809 Court St (TMP #219-005-000). The 1.81-ac parcel 145 

is owned by Hillsborough Capital LLC and is located in the Commerce District. 146 

 147 

Change of Governmental Land Use – RSA 674:54 regarding a proposed skate park on the 148 

property located at 160 Water St (TMP #586-001-000). The 2.19-ac parcel is owned by the City 149 

of Keene and is located in the Business Growth & Reuse District. 150 

 151 

Parks, Recreation and Facilities Director Andy Bohannon addressed the Board and stated before 152 

the Board tonight is an overview of the skate park project and the application to the Planning 153 

Board to consider change of 160 Water Street to Governmental use.  154 

 155 

Mr. Bohannon began by providing a history of the skate park currently located on Gilbo Avenue 156 

which was established in 1996. He indicated in the 2010 Comprehensive Master Plan there was a 157 

suggestion to construct a permanent park. In 2011, the Skatepark Re-Location Committee 158 

provided a detailed report to the City Council which was adopted by the Council. The report 159 

called for connectivity to other parks, especially the amenities built within Russell Park. A year 160 

later the Active and Passive Recreation Management Plan was completed and nine key issues 161 

were presented to the Planning Board at that time; looking at long range Capital Planning and 162 

Park Site-Specific Master Plans. There were 14 recommendations outlined for each key issue. 163 

Mr. Bohannon stated in 2015 a group of people out of the Re-Location Committee worked with 164 

Spohn Ranch, the current contractor and put together a design for the skate park (at that time to 165 

5 of 48



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

December 19, 2022 

Page 5 of 7 

 

be located at Wheelock Park).  However, the skaters could not raise the $750,000 that was 166 

required.  167 

 168 

In 2018, Cathy Burke took over the fundraising effort. In 2022 the City purchased the Findings 169 

property.  Mr. Bohannon stated Cathy Burke set out the fundraising campaign and in total with 170 

many big donors within the City raised $217,616.16 (City provided $25,000) out of the $300,000 171 

campaign. The City also applied for the Land and Water Conservation Fund, a federal grant just 172 

submitted for $225,000. A Design-Build Contract has been signed with Spohn Ranch for 173 

$225,000. 174 

 175 

Mr. Bohannon stated the benefits of the skate park are endless and what sparks his interest with 176 

the skate park is that most of the kids that use the park are not involved in team sports; the skate  177 

park users are their family, they encourage and coach one and other and help each other out 178 

during difficult times. This is the reason Cathy Burke got involved – her son was a video gamer 179 

and would not get off the couch. However, with the help of one of his teachers was introduced to 180 

the skate park. He is now a student at University of Vermont. 181 

 182 

Mr. Bohannon then went over the elements of a successful skate park which were the result of 183 

the Re-Location Committee as well as from the Adapt a Skate Park model. If the Findings 184 

property and Russell Park are looked from the standpoint of the adjoining corridor – 185 

 Accessibility – it will be ADA accessible and wheel friendly.  186 

 Visibility into the park is essential for many reasons. Mr. Bohannon referred to a female 187 

skater who uses the park who had specifically requested visibility and for multiple 188 

entrance points.  189 

 Environmental Impact – this location will help with stormwater runoff as the Russell 190 

Park is completed and when the Findings Building is torn down there would be 191 

appropriate drainage added to the site. 192 

 Adjacent Amenities – Russell Park has a water fountain, public bathrooms, parking, 193 

access to a convenience store less than a mile from the park. 194 

 Size – According to the Skate Park Adoption Model, anything above 8,000 square feet 195 

should be appropriate for Keene – this park will be close to 9,000 square feet in size.  196 

 Seating – There will be bleachers and benches available 197 

 Aesthetic Appeal – There will be appropriate landscaping brought in 198 

 Security, Operations, and Maintenance 199 

 200 

Mr. Bohannon then went over a conceptual design of the park. 201 

 202 

The goals of the project will be to build a new concrete skate park (not the wooden/steel 203 

structure that exists right now), demolish the building, provide additional parking, create 204 

additional storm water retention areas, improve the aesthetics of the Park, create a more vibrant 205 

presence within the neighborhood, and provide easier and safe access from downtown Keene and 206 

the Cheshire Rail Trail. 207 

 208 

Mr. Bohannon next referred to skate parks and noise. He stated there have been plenty of studies 209 

done on this topic. The Portland, Oregon Sheriff’s office in 2001completed a study. The study 210 

looked at noise level 50 feet away on a concrete surface. Performing an “Ollie,” the sound level 211 

6 of 48



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

December 19, 2022 

Page 6 of 7 

 

at 50 feet away would equal a baseball bat which is about 65-71decibels. Performing a “Grind” 212 

would be 56-65 decibels. He noted that 60 decibels is conversational speech, 70 decibels is 213 

normal street noise, 85 decibels is noisy restaurant, 100 decibels is passing truck, and 130 214 

decibels is the threshold of Physical Pain. Mr. Bohannon felt a skate park would be no different 215 

than children playing on a swing set which would also be in the close proximity to the skate 216 

park.  217 

 218 

Mr. Bohannon next went over some questions that came up at the Design Workshop, such as: 219 

Will there be Direct Lighting? (No, to have direct lighting will be an additional $150,000). 220 

What are the hours of operation? (Dusk to Dawn). Will there be fencing? (There will be fencing 221 

on Carpenter and Water Street sides). Will there be shade Trees? (Yes, as many as possible). 222 

Will there be Parking? (Yes). 223 

 224 

Mr. Bohannon referred to a final design which has been changed slightly. This concluded Mr. 225 

Bohannon’s presentation. 226 

 227 

Vice-Chair Orgaz asked what the level of security would be. Mr. Bohannon stated there will be 228 

no gates and would be similar to Russell Park; other than police drive by as well as very diligent 229 

neighborhood. He talked about the small pocket park that was constructed on Church Street 230 

which at first was a concern to the neighbors; however, that park has brought about just the 231 

opposite type of effect on this neighborhood. People are invited to sit and relax, children play on 232 

the park, dogs are walked etc. He added if there is negative activity it will be squashed very fast 233 

as the users of the park have waited a long time for this park.  234 

 235 

Mr. Farrington felt this skate park would be a great resource for the community and a great 236 

example of the City and a group of activists getting something positive accomplished. 237 

Mr. Farrington stated the only concern was some sort of screening from Water Street and 238 

Carpenter Street which he felt would go a long way. He also asked about how many skaters use 239 

the site on Gilbo Avenue and what is expected for this park. Mr. Bohannon stated they don’t 240 

have an accurate count of how many frequent the park everyday but if it is any indication as to 241 

usage calculation based on the bike park at Wheelock; that park sees about 25 to 50 kids a day. 242 

Mr. Bohannon added because this is a new park there will be many who would travel to use the 243 

park. 244 

 245 

Ms. Markelon asked whether they are fully funded. Mr. Bohannon stated the concrete facility is 246 

fully funded and the grant is being used as a match for federal funds which will be used for 247 

bleachers, planting of trees and to tear the building down. He added they are not likely to have 248 

enough funds to construct the parking lot which would have to be another phase. Mr. Bohannon 249 

stated the nice thing about this parcel is that it is connected to another parcel that has already 250 

received Land and Water Conservation Funds. It is likely these two properties will be merged 251 

and turned into one lot which would enable them to go after additional funding. The City is also 252 

applying for a FEMA grant to help with demolition. 253 

 254 

Vice-Chair Orgaz asked staff how the Board handles a motion on this item. Ms. Brunner stated 255 

the Board does not have to make a motion but if it wishes to, it will be a non-binding motion. 256 

 257 

7 of 48



PB Meeting Minutes DRAFT 

December 19, 2022 

Page 7 of 7 

The Vice-Chair thanked staff for their presentation. 258 

259 

260 

V. Adoption of 2023 Meeting Schedule261 

262 
The Chair noted the December meeting will be the 3rd week to avoid the Christmas Holiday. 263 

264 

A motion was made by Harold Farrington to adopt the 2023 Meeting Schedule. The motion was 265 

seconded Roberta Mastrogiovanni and was unanimously approved. 266 

267 

VI. Staff Updates268 

269 
Ms. Brunner stated the Planning Department has received a grant from Invest NH which would 270 

supplement the existing budget to complete a Housing Needs Assessment. Outreach and 271 

engagement work will be started soon, housing resilience survey will be sent out to the 272 

community, updates on the work will be brought forward to the Joint Committee. The Housing 273 

Assessment would look at what the City’s housing needs and future projections of housing 274 

needs. The Assessment would also look at resilience of housing stock; there is existing housing 275 

stock that is vulnerable to flooding. The outcome would be a list of things the City can do. 276 

277 

VII. New Business278 

a. Master Plan Update279 

280 

Vice-Chair Orgaz stated Chair Russell Slack has requested discussion on the master plan update 281 

to be added to a future meeting - January agenda. 282 

283 

Mr. Farrington stated he had the opportunity to participate in the Southwest Region Planning 284 

Commission meeting. They are looking for public comment on issues that exist on the Route 101 285 

corridor. He encouraged people to contact the Southwest Region Planning Commission. 286 

287 

VIII. Upcoming Dates of Interest288 

• Joint Committee of the Planning Board and PLD – January 9, 6:30 PM289 

• Planning Board Steering Committee – January 10, 11:00 AM290 

• Planning Board Site Visit – January 18, 8:00 AM – To Be Confirmed291 

• Planning Board Meeting – January 23, 6:30 PM292 

293 

294 

There being no further business, Vice-Chair Orgaz adjourned the meeting at 7:30 PM. 295 

296 

Respectfully submitted by, 297 

Krishni Pahl, Minute Taker 298 

299 

Reviewed and edited by, 300 

Mari Brunner, Senior Planner 301 

8 of 48



9 of 48



STAFF REPORT 
 

SPR 790, Mod. 1 – Site Plan Review – Summit Packaging Addition – 7 Krif Court 
 
Request: 
Applicant Keach-Nordstrom Associates Inc., on behalf of owner Summit Packaging Systems LLC, 
proposes to construct a ~6,400 sf addition to the existing 6,250 sf Summit Packaging Systems building and 
modify the parking lot, landscaping, utilities, and stormwater management systems on the property at 7 Krif 
Ct (TMP #118-002-000). The parcel is 1.98 acres and is located in the Industrial District. 
 
Background: 
The 1.98 acre parcel at 7 Krif Court is located on the southwest side of the cul-de-sac at the end of Krif 
Court. The site contains an existing 6,250 sq. ft. single story metal building where Summit Packaging 
Systems, an actuator and aerosol valve manufacturer, is located. The site is surrounded by woods and 
wetlands to the west and south, and industrial uses to the north. 
 
The proposal consists of the construction of a 
new, 6,400 sq. ft. addition to the existing 
building as well as site improvements. The site 
improvements include replacing the existing 
driveway, formalizing the parking area, 
landscaping, and expansion of the site 
stormwater management system. An above 
ground propane tank is proposed to be 
relocated along the western side of the parking 
area and is protected by concrete bollards. 
   
Completeness: 
The applicant requests exemptions from 
submitting a lighting plan, traffic analysis, soils 
analysis, historic evaluation, screening 
analysis, and architectural & visual appearance 
analysis. After reviewing each request, staff 
has determined that exempting the applicant 
from submitting this information would have 
no bearing on the merits of the application and 
recommends that the Planning Board grant 
these exemptions and accept the application as 
“complete.” 
 
Application Analysis:  The following is a review of the Planning Board development standards relevant 
to this application.  
 
20.2 Drainage:  The existing stormwater management system on the site consists of a swale with culverts 

that drain into a sediment forebay before flowing into above ground infiltration basin located on 
the southeast of the property. In order to accommodate the proposed addition, the existing 
infiltration basin and sediment forebay will be modified and increased in size. Two additional above 
ground infiltration basins will also be installed, one along the westerly portion of the property (basin 
#2) and the second located in the southwest portion of the property (basin #1). Basin #2 will serve 
as compensatory flood storage in addition to stormwater management. The report demonstrates that 
there will not be a net increase in flow off the site. The proposed stormwater management system 

Fig 1: Aerial view of 7 Krif Court 

10 of 48



STAFF REPORT 
 

and associated drainage report have been reviewed by Engineering and it appears that this standard 
has been met. 

20.3 Sediment & Erosion Control: An erosion control plan has been submitted with this proposal. The 
plan depicts a stabilized construction entrance to be installed where the proposed primary entrance 
to the new parking area will be located. Silt fence and silt sox are proposed for perimeter erosion 
control around areas of disturbance. Slopes will be stabilized with erosion control blankets and turf 
as needed. It appears that this standard has been met.  

20.4 Snow Storage & Removal: The proposed site plan has snow storage areas located in several areas 
around the proposed driveway and parking area. These areas are located away from surface waters 
and the applicant states in their narrative that the areas are intended to allow parking and site access 
to remain clear for safe passage. A note has been included on the plan regarding the removal of 
snow from the site when storage capacity has been exceeded. It appears that this standard has been 
met. 

20.5 Landscaping: The property currently contains 13 trees. The proposal includes the removal of 1 tree 
to make way for the redesigned parking area. The proposal also includes the installation 6 shrub 
varietals and 4 ornamental grasses along the walkway to the main entrance. The planting schedule 
indicates that all species were chosen based on the appropriate climate conditions for the region 
and no invasive species are proposed to be installed. The landscape plan shows that temporary 
fencing will be installed around the existing trees at the drip line to protect the root system from 
damage during construction. It appears that this standard has been met. 

20.6 Screening: A dumpster enclosure is proposed to be installed on the northern edge of the proposed 
hammerhead turn around. The dumpster enclosure is proposed to be 6 ft. vinyl planking with 
matching vinyl plank gates. The Zoning Administrator has determined that the parking area is 
existing and does not meet the threshold for new screening, therefore no screening of the parking 
area is required. It appears that this standard has been met. 

20.7 Lighting: The existing site does not have any pole lights for the parking area and the proposal does 
not include the installation of any new pole lights for the site. The only lighting for the exterior of 
the site consists of wall packs that are located above building entrances. The proposed wall packs 
are full cut-off fixtures with a color temperature of 3000k and a color rendering index of 80. It 
appears that this standard has been met. 

20.8 Sewer & Water: The applicant states in their narrative that the site is currently serviced by 
municipal water and sewer and there are no proposed changes to the service lines as part of this 
application. This standard is not applicable. 

20.9 Traffic & Access Management: A Trip Generation Memo was submitted as part of this application. 
The memo states that the proposed addition will not increase the total number of employees at the 
business or deliveries the site will receive. The memo estimates 60 total weekday trips with 8 trips 
during weekday A.M. peak and 9 trips during weekday P.M. peak. The memo further states that 
there are only 10 employees at any given time and that tractor trailers do not visit the site often. 
The analysis made a conservative estimation of 1 tractor trailer trip per day. Van deliveries are 
more common and visit the site approximately 2-5 times per day. 

 The site utilizes two existing site access points off of the Krif Court cul-de-sac. The proposal 
intends to continue using both access points and plans to resurface the access point that leads to the 
parking area and proposed addition as part of proposed overall site improvements. A 22 ft. wide 

11 of 48



STAFF REPORT 
 

drive aisle is proposed to accommodate the 15 perpendicular parking spaces and provide access to 
the addition and hammerhead turn around. It appears that this standard has been met. 

20.10 Filling & Excavation: The applicant states in their narrative the proposed addition and site work 
intends to utilize material on site as much as possible. They are anticipating minimal truck activity 
leaving or entering the site. Krif Court and Krif Road lead directly to Route 10 so any truck activity 
related to delivery or removal of earth material will have minimal impact on traffic and the area. It 
appears that this standard has been met. 

20.11 Surface Waters & Wetlands: The site has wetlands located along the southern and western property 
lines with 30 ft. wetland buffers located within the site. The applicant has stated in their narrative 
that the proposal does not include any impact to surface waters or their buffers as part of this 
proposal. Erosion control measures are proposed to be placed between the edge of the buffers and 
the proposed limit of earth work to provide both siltation protection and a visual guide to prevent 
accidental grading within the buffer area. The Board may wish to include a condition of approval 
related to the inspection of the required erosion control measures prior to the start of site work to 
ensure that the erosion control measures are installed properly. Recommended language for this 
condition has been provided below. It appears that this standard has been met. 

20.12 Hazardous & Toxic Materials: The applicant has stated in their narrative that that Summit 
Packaging Systems manufactures and distributes aerosol valves and actuators and that the facility 
is not intended or expected to receive, handle, or process any hazardous or toxic substances. It 
appears that this standard has been met. 

20.13  Noise: The applicant states in their narrative that the current use of the property will remain the 
same and will stay consistent with the surrounding land uses in the Industrial zone. The property is 
located at the end of a cul-de-sac with no adjacent residential uses. It appears that this standard has 
been met. 

20.14 Architecture & Visual 
Appearance: The 
applicant states in 
their narrative that the 
proposed metal 
addition was designed 
to be cohesive with 
the existing facility. It 
also states that the 
addition will be 
compatible with the 
industrial character of 
the site and 
surrounding area. 
Color elevations have 
been submitted with 
the application. The 
Board will need to 
determine if this 
standard has been met. 

 
 

Fig 2: Street view of 7 Krif Court 

12 of 48



STAFF REPORT 
 
Recommended Motion:  
If the Board is inclined to approve this request, the following language is recommended for a motion:  

“Approve SPR-790, Mod. 1 as shown on the plan identified as “Summit Packaging Systems, LLC. Map 
118 Lot 2 7 Krif Court Keene, New Hampshire” prepared by Keach-Nordstrom Associates, Inc. at a scale 
of 1 in. = 20 ft. dated December 15, 2022 and last revised January 9, 2023 and the architectural elevations 
prepared by Lauer Architects, P.A. at a scale of 1/8 in. = 1 ft. dated January 4, 2023 with the following 
conditions: 

A. Prior to final approval and signature by the Planning Board Chair, the following conditions 
precedent shall be met: 

1. Submittal of security for sedimentation and erosion control and “as built” plans in a 
form and amount acceptable to the City Engineer.” 

2. Submittal of five full sized paper copies and one digital copy of the final plan. 
B. Subsequent to final approval and signature by the Planning Board Chair, the following 

conditions shall be met: 
1. Prior to the commencement of site work, the Community Development Department 

shall be notified when all erosion control measure are installed and the Community 
Development Director, or their designee, shall inspect the erosion control measures to 
ensure compliance with this site plan and all City of Keene regulations.”  

 

  

13 of 48



14 of 48



 2 

 

SECTION 3: APPLICATION SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS  
A COMPLETE APPLICATION MUST INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS AND MUST BE SUBMITTED BY ONE OF THE OPTIONS BELOW:  

 

Email: communitydevelopment@keenenh.gov, with “Planning Board Applica on” in the subject line 
Mail / Hand Deliver:  Community Development (4th Floor), Keene City Hall, 3 Washington St, Keene, NH 03431   

 

The submi al requirements for Planning Board applica ons are outlined further in Ar cle 20 and Ar cle 25.12 of the Land Develop-
ment Code (LDC). You may request an exemp on from providing any of the items below, except the applica on fee, no ce list, nar-
ra ve, and mailing labels. The Community Development Director may grant an exemp on, if it is determined that the scope of the 
project does not warrant the submi al.  
 

Note: Addi onal informa on may be requested by the respec ve decision-making authority during the review process. 

GENERAL SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
CERTIFIED NOTICE LIST (See A achment A for more informa on.) 

2 SETS OF MAILING LABELS (See A achment A for more informa on.) 

PROJECT NARRATIVE (See Sec on 1 of A achment B for more informa on.) 

FEES: Fill in the informa on below to calculate the total fee. 
 
□ $250 base fee   

sf of new construc on□ $0.05 per-sf of new construc on x _  ______ 
□ $62 legal ad fee   
□ abu ers current USPS cer fied mailing rate x ________ ______
 
= (TOTAL FEE) ___________ 
 
NOTE: Please call the Community Development Department for the current cer fied mailing rate. Checks should be made paya-
ble to the City of Keene. Credit card payments are accepted in-person or by calling 603-352-5440.  

WAIVERS (See Sec on 2 of A achment B for addi onal informa on.)                                      □ WAIVER(S) REQUESTED 
                                                                                                                                                                    □ NO WAIVER(S) REQUESTED 

PLAN SETS   
(See A achment C for addi onal informa on.) SUBMITTED EXEMPTION 

REQUESTED 
LOCATION MAP OF PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS   

EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN   

PROPOSED CONDITIONS PLAN   

GRADING PLAN   

LANDSCAPING PLAN   

LIGHTING PLAN   

ELEVATIONS   

TECHNICAL REPORTS  
(See A achment C for addi onal informa on.) SUBMITTED EXEMPTION 

REQUESTED 
DRAINAGE REPORT   

TRAFFIC ANALYSIS   

SOIL ANALYSIS   

HISTORIC EVALUATION   

SCREENING ANALYSIS   

ARCHITECTURAL & VISUAL APPEARANCE ANALYSIS   

OTHER REPORTS / ANALYSES   

6,400

■ 4.57 7

663.99

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X15 of 48



16 of 48



 

10 Commerce Park North, Suite 3B Bedford, NH 03110 Phone (603) 627-2881 Fax (603) 627-2915 

Civil Engineering Land Surveying Landscape Architecture 

KEACH-NORDSTROM ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 

 

December 15, 2022 

 

City of Keene 

Community Development Department 

3 Washington Street 

Keene, New Hampshire 03431 

 

Subject: Summit Packaging Systems, LLC Site Plan Application 

  Tax Map 118; Lot 2 

  7 Krif Court, Keene, NH 

  KNA Project No. 22-0308-3 

 

 

Project Narrative 

 

Existing & Proposed Uses: 

The subject property is located at 7 Krif Court in Keene, New Hampshire. The 1.98-acre parcel, 

referenced on Tax Map 118 as Lot 2, is entirely within the Industrial (I) Zoning District. The lot 

is partially developed with the existing Summit Packaging facility consisting of a 6,250-sf building 

as all associated site appurtenances. The lot is bounded by woodlands and wetlands to the west 

and south, and industrial uses to the north. 

 

The project proposes the construction of a 6,400-sf building addition for the Summit Packaging 

facility. Other site upgrades will include improvements to the existing driveway entrance and 

parking lot, landscaping, utility work, and stormwater management provisions. 

 

Article 20.2 Drainage & Stormwater Management: 

Stormwater Management provisions include modifications to an existing above-ground infiltration 

basin, as well as the construction of two additional above-ground infiltration basins. The system 

promotes groundwater recharge. To further describe the proposed drainage systems, a detailed 

stormwater management report is included in this submittal package.  

 

Article 20.3 Sediment & Erosion Control: 

A sediment and erosion control plan has been provided in this submittal package. The proposed 

measures were designed to prevent erosion and sedimentation during and after construction. 

Erosion control methods include the use of perimeter controls, erosion control blankets, and turf 

stabilization. All efforts will be made to protect the existing 30’ wetland buffer during 

construction. 

 

Article 20.4 Snow Storage & Removal: 

Snow storage areas are depicted on the site plan. The proposed snow storage areas are intended to 

allow parking areas and site access to remain clear for safe passage in/out of the site. Additionally, 

on the site plan, a note regarding the removal of snow from the site, when capacity is exceeded, 

has been provided. 

17 of 48



 

 

10 Commerce Park North, Suite 3B Bedford, NH 03110 Phone (603) 627-2881 Fax (603) 627-2915 

Civil Engineering Land Surveying Landscape Architecture 

 

Article 20.5 Landscaping: 

A formal landscaping plan has been included within this submittal package. All plant materials 

and landscaping were chosen based on the most appropriate climate conditions for the region. No 

invasive species are proposed. Installation and maintenance methods will comply with the Land 

Development Code Standards.  

 

In the proposed design one tree will be removed in order to provide a proper parking area that 

meets regulations. There are two rows of small shrubs alongside the walkway located at the 

northern entrance of the existing building that will be removed and replaced with new shrubs after 

the construction of a new walkway. Remaining existing trees on the site shall be protected during 

construction. 

 

Article 20.6 Screening: 

Any areas such as loading, or waste storage/removal will be screened according to the Land 

Development Code Regulations. 

 

Article 20.7 Lighting: 

Site lighting will comply with all applicable regulations. There are no existing light poles and no 

light poles are proposed. Existing lighting consists of wall mounted lights above the doorways, 

mounted at a height of approximately 1’ above the doors. The only proposed lighting is adding 

wall mounted lights above the new proposed doorways. All proposed lighting will be dark sky 

compliant and meeting the City Lighting regulations. 

 

Article 20.8 Sewer & Water: 

The site is serviced by municipal sewer and water and will remain as existing. 

 

Article 20.9 Traffic & Access Management: 

The site is expected to have fewer than 100 vehicle trips per day entering/exiting the industrial 

facility. Due to the low traffic volumes, the project is not anticipated to diminish the capacity or 

safety of existing city streets, bridges, or intersections. According to Section 20.9.1(A), projects 

with fewer than 100 projected vehicle trips per day are not expected to demonstrate capacity and 

safety with the submittal of a formal traffic study. 

 

The project is not proposing any additional curb cuts for the site however, there are proposed 

improvements to the existing driveway access and parking/circulation. All improvements will 

comply with the Land Development Code Standards to provide safe passage of all vehicles and 

pedestrians onsite.  Note, the current use will remain manufacturing with no anticipated employee 

increase at this time. 

 

Article 20.10 Filling & Excavation: 

The proposed project is expected to utilize earth on-site with minimal trucks entering/ leaving the 

site. No work is proposed within the wetlands or wetland buffer. All earth work will comply with 

any applicable federal, state, and local regulations. 

 

 

18 of 48



 

 

10 Commerce Park North, Suite 3B Bedford, NH 03110 Phone (603) 627-2881 Fax (603) 627-2915 

Civil Engineering Land Surveying Landscape Architecture 

Article 20.11 Surface Waters & Wetlands: 

The project is not proposing any disturbances to the wetlands or wetland buffer. 

 

Article 20.12 Hazardous & Toxic Materials: 

Summit Packaging Systems, LLC manufactures and distributes aerosol valves and actuators. Their 

facility is not expected to receive, handle, store or process any hazardous or toxic substances. 

 

Article 20.13 Noise: 

The purpose of the established noise regulation is to reduce noise impacts to the neighboring 

properties, especially with differing abutting uses. The current use of this property will remain and 

will stay consistent with the surrounding area which is comprised of other industrial uses and/or 

undeveloped land. Additionally, the site will comply with the Land Development Code 

Regulations in regard to the Noise Ordinances and Limits. 

 

Article 20.14 Architecture & Visual Appearance: 

The proposed building addition was designed to be cohesive with the existing facility. It will be 

compatible with the industrial character of the site and surrounding area. Architectural plans have 

been submitted as part of this application package.  

19 of 48



20 of 48



21 of 48



22 of 48



23 of 48



24 of 48



25 of 48



26 of 48



27 of 48



28 of 48



29 of 48



30 of 48



31 of 48



 

 

I. INTRODUCTION 

A. Project Description 

The project proposes to add a 6,400 SF building addition, connected to the existing 

building on the property. The project includes the reconstruction of the parking area, 

widening the drive aisle, the 6,400 SF building addition, and two infiltration basins behind 

and along the side of the proposed addition. The existing infiltration basin will also be 

increased in size. The total area of disturbance for construction is approximately 60,850 

SF, which is less than 100,000 square feet and therefore does not require an Alteration of 

Terrain Permit. 

B. Existing Site Conditions 

The subject property, referenced on Keene Tax Map 118 as Lot 2, and is situated entirely 

within the Industrial (I) Zoning District. The total area of all the parcel is approximately 1.98 

acres and has frontage along Krif Court. The lot is located with FEMA Flood Zone AE. The 

lot is already developed, occupied by a 1-story, 6,284 SF industrial building, associated 

parking and paved areas, and an infiltration basin. As required for lots within the Flood 

Zone, a Site Specific Soil Map Report has been prepared and is included in the appendix 

of this report. As such, the soil Hydrological rating per the SSSM Report were used in the 

HydroCAD model. According to the Web Soil Survey NRCS Mapping, the lot consists of 

Raynham-Wareham Complex, Occasionally Flooded. 

 

II. STORM DRAINAGE ANALYSIS & DESIGN  

A. Methodology 

In accordance with the City of Keene’s Land Development Code and generally accepted 

engineering practice, 2-year, 10-year, 25-year & 50-year frequency storms have each 

been used in the various aspects of analysis and design of stormwater management 

considerations for the subject site. Stormwater treatment provisions have been designed 

for 2-year and 10-year return frequency storms. Infiltration basins have been checked 

against a 50-year return frequency storm event. 

KNA utilizes HydroCAD version 10.0 to analyze both pre and post-development 

watershed characteristics.  This computer software system is based largely on hydrology 

techniques (TR-20) developed by the Soil Conservation Service (now the Natural 

Resources Conservation Service).  In addition, the software derives Time of Concentration 

values using the methodology contained within USDA-S.C.S. publication Urban Hydrology 

for Small Watersheds Technical Release No. 55 (TR 55). 

All design and analysis calculations performed using the referenced methodologies are 

attached to this report. The minimum time of concentrations used for the analysis is 6 

minutes. These calculations document each catchment area, a breakdown of surface 

type, time of concentration, rainfall intensity, peak discharge volume, Manning’s “n” value, 

peak velocity, and other descriptive design data for each watershed and pipe segment 

evaluated. In addition, the “Pre/Post Development Drainage Area Plans” graphically define 

and illustrate the extent of each watershed or catchment area investigated.  

32 of 48



 

 

B. Pre-Development Drainage Conditions 

In the pre-development scenario, one (1) point of analysis (POA) was identified as the 

appropriate point to compare pre vs. post development rates of stormwater discharge. 

This point of analysis reflects the main discharge point of the site and was analyzed to 

show the impact of the proposed improvements. 

The pre-development drainage model’s POA is further described as follows: 

➢ A  Wetlands  
 

In general, the site slopes outwardly toward the property lines and making its way towards 

the south/southwest to the existing wetland located to the south/southwest of the property. 

A portion of the existing building roof runoff and paved areas flows to an existing forebay 

and existing infiltration basin prior to discharging over land to the existing wetlands. The 

remaining of the site discharges overland to the wetlands. 

For a more visual description of the information presented in this section, please refer to 

the attached “Pre-Development Drainage Areas Plan” attached in the appendix of this 

report. 

C. Post-Development Drainage Conditions: 

The same POA that was identified in the pre-development scenario has been analyzed in 

the post-development scenario. The proposed stormwater management system utilizes 

both open and closed drainage that incorporates various best management practices for 

the collection, storage, and treatment of runoff. Stormwater runoff generated from the 

proposed building addition is collected by a perforated pipe within a drip edge and directed 

to a proposed sediment forebay. Runoff then discharges to proposed infiltration basins. 

Overflow from the proposed basins discharges overland to the existing wetlands. The 

paved areas and the existing roof will flow overland to the existing forebay and existing 

infiltration basin as discussed in the pre-development conditions. The existing forebay and 

infiltration basin storage capacity will be increased to provide adequate treatment for 

runoff. 

The proposed drainage system has been designed to mitigate the increased runoff from 

both the proposed building addition and additional paved area by directing the flow to the 

proposed infiltration ponds.  

The peak stormwater runoff rate for the specific storm frequencies is presented and 

analyzed in the subsequent summary section of this report (Table 1). For a more visual 

description of the information presented in this section, please refer to the attached “Post-

Development Drainage Areas Plan” attached in the appendix of this report.  

D. Summary: 

The subject site complies with the City of Keene Land Development Code in regard to 

stormwater mitigation. Proposed stormwater best management practices (BMP) are 

designed in accordance with the New Hampshire Stormwater Manual Volume 2: Post-

Construction Best Management Practices Selection and Design. Stormwater discharges, 

in terms of peak rate of runoff, are reported below in Table 1.  

 

 

33 of 48



 

 

 Table 1: Peak Flow Discharge Rate 

Site Pre-Development vs. Post-Development (cfs) 

Description 2-Year 10-Year 25-Year 50-Year 

24-hr Rainfall 2.76 in/hr 3.99 in/hr 4.93 in/hr 5.78 in/hr 

 Pre Post Pre Post Pre Post Pre Post 

A 0.64 0.64 1.39 1.36 2.13 1.96 5.41 2.53 

 

Table 2: Volume of Runoff 

Site Pre-Development vs. Post-Development (cubic-feet) 

Description 2-Year 10-Year 25-Year 50-Year 

24-hr Rainfall 2.76 in/hr 3.99 in/hr 4.93 in/hr 5.78 in/hr 

 Pre Post Pre Post Pre Post Pre Post 

A 2,146 2,107 6,238 4,259 11,745 8,683 17,147 13,659 

 

E. Flood Storage: 

Examination of the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance 

Rate Map (FIRM) for the City of Keene Map Number 33005C0266E, Panel Number 655 

of 701, Effective Date: May 23, 2009, indicates that the subject parcel is located entirely 

within a designated flood hazard area AE with base flood elevation of 471.2’ (NAVD 88). 

Due to this, the site improvements were analyzed and designed to provide an equal (or 

additional) amount of flood storage below the elevation of 471.2’.  

Using Autodesk Civil 3D 2019 surface analysis tools, the existing grades and proposed 

grades were compared to the flood elevation to determine the amount of volume provided 

for flood storage. Between elevations 463 and 471.2’, the existing grades provide a 

storage volume of 18,721 CF. Between elevations 463 and 471.2’, the proposed grades 

provide a storage volume of 18,753 CF. The proposed improvements provide an increase 

of approximately 32 CF of flood storage. Majority of this increase in storage is provided 

between the elevation range of 463 to 467’. A breakdown of the storage provided is 

provided in the table below. 

Table 3: Stage Volume Table 

Elevation Range Existing Volume Proposed Volume Difference 

463 – 464’ 467 CF 543 CF 76 CF CUT 

464 – 465’ 830 CF 894 CF 64 CF CUT 

465 – 466’ 1,156 CF 1,281 CF 125 CF CUT 

466 – 467’ 1,942 CF 2,015 CF 73 CF CUT 

467 – 468’ 2,839 CF 2,684 CF 155 CF FILL 

468 – 469’ 3,149 CF 3,135 CF 14 CF FILL 

469 – 470’ 3,535 CF 3,567 CF 32 CF CUT 

470 – 471.2’ 4,803 CF 4,634 CF 169 CF FILL 

  TOTAL VOLUME: 32 CF CUT 

  

34 of 48



 

 

III. EROSION & SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PROVISIONS 

A. Temporary Erosion Control Measures 

As an integral part of the engineering design of this site, an erosion and sedimentation 

control plan has been developed with the intent of limiting the potential for soil loss and 

associated receiving water quality degradation, both during and after the construction 

period. As the project plans indicate, traditional temporary erosion and sedimentation 

control devices and practices, such as siltation fencing, erosion control blankets, and 

seeding have been specified for use during the construction period. In preparation of these 

provisions, reference was made to the New Hampshire Stormwater Manual; Volume 3: 

Erosion and Sediment Temporary Controls During Construction. Construction details for 

each temporary erosion control measure and practice specified have been added to the 

project plans. These plans also contain a number of erosion control notes, which are 

offered to the selected contractor in order to supplement the specified measures and 

practices to the extent practical. 

B. Construction Sequence 

A site-specific construction sequence sensitive to limiting soil loss due to erosion and 

associated water quality degradation was prepared specifically for this project and is 

shown on the project plans. As pointed out in the erosion control notes, it is important for 

the contractor to recognize that proper judgment in the implementation of work will be 

essential if erosion is to be limited and protection of completed work is to be realized. 

Moreover, any specific changes in sequence and/or field conditions affecting the ability of 

specific erosion control measures to adequately serve their intended purpose should be 

reported to this office by the contractor. Further, the contractor is encouraged to 

supplement specified erosion control measures during the construction period where and 

when in his/ her best judgment additional protection is warranted. 

C. Permanent Erosion Control Measures 

In the design of this site, consideration was given to limiting the potential for long-term 

erosion of completed improvements. As a result, several permanent erosion control 

measures were incorporated into the site design. These provisions include: 

1) Specification of a turf establishment schedule and seed mixture, utilizing materials and 

workmanship recognized as appropriate for the site conditions at hand; 

2) Bituminous pavement; 

3) Construction of rip-rap at the outlet of the stormwater management areas. 

 

 

 

 

 

35 of 48



MAP 118 LOT 2
7 KRIF COURT

KEENE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
CHESHIRE COUNTY

DRAINAGE LOCATION PLAN

36 of 48



PRE DRAINAGE AREA MAP

MAP 118 LOT 2
7 KRIF COURT

KEENE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
CHESHIRE COUNTY

37 of 48



POST DRAIN AREA MAP

MAP 118 LOT 2
7 KRIF COURT

KEENE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
CHESHIRE COUNTY

38 of 48



Project Catalog # Type

Prepared by Notes Date

PS514102EN   page 1
November 4, 2022 11:37 PM

Quick Facts
• Available in 14W - 123W (1,800 - 17,000 lumens) 

models
• Full cutoff and refractive lens models available
• Energy and maintenance savings up to 95%  

compared to HID
• Energy efficient illumination results in up to 144 LPW
• Replaces 70W up to 450W HID equivalents

Interactive Menu
• Ordering Information page 2

• Mounting Details page 3

• Product Specifications page 4

• Energy and Performance Data page 4

• Control Options page 6

Dimensional Details

Wall Mount Luminaire

Lumark  
Axcent 

Full Cutoff Refractive Lens Deep Back Housing

A A

B B C DC

Dimensional Data

Full Cutoff Refractive Lens Deep Back Housing

AXCS Small AXCL Large

A 8" [202mm] 11-1/2" [292mm]

B 7-1/2" [190mm] 10-3/4" [273mm]

C 3-5/8" [94mm] 4-7/8" [124mm]

D 6-1/8" [155mm] 7-1/8" [181mm]

LumenSafe Technology Light ARchitectTM

Connected Systems
• WaveLinx Lite
• Enlighted

Product Certifications

Product Features

CLASS A
CAN ICES-005

AVAIL ABL E

CO

MPLIANT OPTIONS

BAA
BUY AMERICAN ACT

DUSK-TO-DAWN

39 of 48

http://eaton.com/lumensafe
http://www.cooperindustries.com/content/public/en/lighting/connected_systems/wavelinx_wireless_connected_lighting_system.html
russ
Highlight



Project Catalog # Type

Prepared by Notes Date

PS514102EN   page 1
November 4, 2022 11:37 PM

Quick Facts
• Available in 14W - 123W (1,800 - 17,000 lumens) 

models
• Full cutoff and refractive lens models available
• Energy and maintenance savings up to 95%  

compared to HID
• Energy efficient illumination results in up to 144 LPW
• Replaces 70W up to 450W HID equivalents

Interactive Menu
• Ordering Information page 2

• Mounting Details page 3

• Product Specifications page 4

• Energy and Performance Data page 4

• Control Options page 6

Dimensional Details

Wall Mount Luminaire

Lumark  
Axcent 

Full Cutoff Refractive Lens Deep Back Housing

A A

B B C DC

Dimensional Data

Full Cutoff Refractive Lens Deep Back Housing

AXCS Small AXCL Large

A 8" [202mm] 11-1/2" [292mm]

B 7-1/2" [190mm] 10-3/4" [273mm]

C 3-5/8" [94mm] 4-7/8" [124mm]

D 6-1/8" [155mm] 7-1/8" [181mm]

LumenSafe Technology Light ARchitectTM

Connected Systems
• WaveLinx Lite
• Enlighted

Product Certifications

Product Features

CLASS A
CAN ICES-005

AVAIL ABL E

CO

MPLIANT OPTIONS

BAA
BUY AMERICAN ACT

DUSK-TO-DAWN

40 of 48

http://eaton.com/lumensafe
http://www.cooperindustries.com/content/public/en/lighting/connected_systems/wavelinx_wireless_connected_lighting_system.html
russ
Highlight



CITY OF KEENE 

NEW HAMPSHIRE 

 

M E M O R A N D U M  
 

Date:   January 13, 2023 

 

To:  Planning Board  

 

From:   Mari Brunner, Senior Planner 

 

Re: Proposed Amendments to the Planning Board Subdivision Regulations  

 

Overview 

The Planning Board Subdivision Regulations are located in Article 19 of the City of Keene Land 

Development Code (Chapter 100 of the City Code of Ordinances). The following amendments are proposed 

to these regulations:  

1. Amend Section 19.2.4 of Article 19, “Preservation of Existing Features” to include additional 

information about the type of features that should be protected and possible mechanisms the 

Planning Board could require to protect those features;  

2. Amend Section 19.2.8, “Utilities” to include additional submittal requirements for proposals that 

would create a new lot(s) not served by City sewer; and  

3. Amend Section 19.3.2.B, “Perimeter Building Setback” of the Conservation Residential 

Development Subdivision Regulations to require that existing tree canopy within the perimeter 

setback along external roads be preserved. 

Attached to this memorandum are the specific sections of the Planning Board Regulations within the Land 

Development Code affected by this proposed change that show the text that is proposed to be added in bold 

and highlighted, and the text that is proposed to be removed with strike through.  

The intent of these proposed amendments is to address some of the concerns expressed during the public 

workshops and public hearings that were held in connection with Ordinance O-2022-09, which initially 

included a proposal to reduce the minimum lot size in the Rural District. These included concerns about 

negative impacts to the rural character of the district, the suitability of soils in this district for siting septic 

systems, and the need to protect important natural and scenic features such as surface waters, steep slopes, 

and important wildlife habitat. The proposed amendments provide additional guidance for the Planning 

Board when reviewing subdivision applications to address these concerns.  

A public hearing will be held at the Planning Board meeting on January 23, 2023 on these proposed 

amendments. The full text of the Land Development Code is available online at www.keenenh.gov/land-

development-code.   

 

41 of 48

http://www.keenenh.gov/land-development-code
http://www.keenenh.gov/land-development-code


Keene, NH Land Development Code | November 2022 Subdivision Regulations | 19-3 

19.2 REVIEW STANDARDS

The Planning Board shall apply the following 
standards in its review of subdivision applications. 

19.2.1 Lots

A. Lot size and configurations shall meet all 
requirements of the Zoning Regulations.

B. All lots shall have frontage on a state highway 
(excluding limited access highways), a Class V 
road, or a street within an approved subdivision 
plan. 

1. Road frontage shall not be less than 50-ft, 
unless expressly allowed in this LDC. 

C. Subdivisions shall not be approved on 
roads shown on city records and plans as 
discontinued, discontinued subject to gates 
and bars, or Class VI roads. 

19.2.2 Character of Land for Subdivision

All land proposed for subdivision shall be of such 
a character that it can be safely used for building 
development purposes and would not pose a danger 
to health or peril from fire, flood, poor drainage, 
excessive slope, or other hazardous conditions. 

19.2.3 Scattered or Premature Development

Subdivisions shall not promote scattered or 
premature development of land as would involve 
danger or injury to health, safety, or necessitate 
the excessive expenditure of public funds for the 
supply of associated services. In making such 
a determination, the Planning Board will take 
into account the capacity of the school system, 
adequacy of access streets, adequacy of water 
supply for fire-fighting purposes, distance from 
emergency services, and availability of other public 
services. 

19.2.4 Preservation of Existing Features

Wherever feasible, suitable steps shall be taken to 
preserve and protect significant existing features, 
such as surface waters, steep slopes, rare and/or 
unique scenic points, stone walls, rock out-croppings, 
and historic landmarks, or any of the attributes 
listed in Section 19.3.4 “Primary and Secondary 

Conservation Areas” of this Article. In order to 
ensure that the objectives of this section are met, 
the Planning Board may require additional studies 
or mitigation, including but not limited to the 
following:  

1. The Board may require the submittal 
of a screening analysis, visual impact 
study, wildlife habitat study, historical 
evaluation, or other technical report 
prepared by a qualified professional.

2. The Board may require the designation 
of a “no-cut buffer” along public rights-
of-way to preserve existing vegetation 
and provide a visual screen for new 
development. Any property that has been 
clear-cut within the preceding ten (10) 
year period, or any property that will be 
clear-cut as a result of any proposed or 
future development, may be required to 
conduct revegetation or other mitigation 
to provide a visual buffer along the public 
rights-of-way.

3. The Board may require that the proposed 
development be designed and located to 
fit into the landscape in order to minimize 
significant landscape alterations and 
mitigate or avoid impacts to significant 
existing features or views/vistas.

19.2.5 Monumentation

The owner or developer shall provide permanent 
reference monuments in accordance with Article 22 
of this LDC.   

19.2.6 Special Flood Hazard Areas 

All subdivision proposals having lands identified 
as Special Flood Hazard Areas on current Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) shall be located 
and configured to be consistent with the need 
to minimize potential impacts from flooding.  In 
addition, any public utilities and facilities associated 
with such proposals shall be located and 
constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage.  

42 of 48



Keene, NH Land Development Code | November 202219-4 | Subdivision Regulations

19.2.7 Fire Protection & Water Supply 

All subdivisions shall be provided with an adequate 
supply of water for fire protection purposes at the 
owner’s expense. This requirement may be met 
by any of the following options, subject to the 
approval of the Fire Chief.

A. Fire hydrants connected to a public water 
main with adequate fire flows and pressures 
appropriate to the type and scale of the 
proposed use that meets the requirements of the 
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) and 
the Keene Fire Department. 

B. Private fire protection water supply systems 
when it is infeasible or economically 
unreasonable to connect a fire hydrant to 
a public water main as determined by the 
Planning Board. Private fire protection water 
supply systems may include the following. 

1. For non-residential, institutional, and multi-
family dwellings, storage and distribution 
systems appropriate to the type and scale 
of the proposed use that comply with the 
standards of the National Fire Protection 
Association (NFPA) and the Keene Fire 
Department. 

2. For single-family dwellings, underground 
cisterns and associated dry hydrants 
that meet the standards of NFPA 1142.  
The location, design, and provisions for 
ownership, maintenance, and all season 
access to the cistern and supporting 
facilities shall conform to the Keene Fire 
Department hydrant specifications.

3. Individual residential sprinkler systems 
meeting the standards of NFPA 13D or 
NFPA 13R may be installed; however, in no 
case may the installation of such a system 
be made a requirement of approval.

4. Any other public or private fire protection 
water supply system approved by the Fire 
Chief and determined by the Planning 
Board to provide a similar or greater level 
of fire protection than the options provided 
in (1) and (2) above.

19.2.8 Utilities

A. When required by City Code, all subdivisions 
will be serviced by City water and sewer. All 
necessary water and sewer lines shall be 
installed to the required specifications of the 
Public Works Department and shall include 
service lines running from the water and sewer 
mains to the property line to service each lot. In 
addition, utility rights-of-way shall be provided 
in accordance with Article 22 of this LDC.

B. All lots smaller than 1-acre in size shall be 
connected to City sewer service, unless 
otherwise expressly allowed in this LDC.

C.  In areas not currently served by City sewer, it 
shall be the responsibility of the applicant or 
their agent to provide:

a. Adequate information (from test 
pits and percolation tests) to prove 
that the land and area of each lot is 
adequate to permit the installation 
and operation of an individual 
sewage disposal system.

b. For subdivisions with lots smaller 
than 5 acres, subdivision approval 
from the New Hampshire Department 
of Environmental Services shall be 
required.

19.3 CONSERVATION RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT SUBDIVISIONS

19.3.1 Purpose

The purpose of a conservation residential 
development subdivision is to promote the 
conservation of natural resources while providing 
greater flexibility and creativity in the design of 
residential development than would be possible 
using conventional zoning and subdivision practices. 

This purpose is accomplished by allowing for 
clustering of dwelling units at a higher density than 
would be allowed by the underlying zoning district, 
provided a portion of the existing tract of land to 
be subdivided is permanently designated as open 
space.

43 of 48



Keene, NH Land Development Code | November 2022 Subdivision Regulations | 19-5 

19.3.2 Dimensional Standards

A. Minimum Dimensional Requirements. 
All conservation residential development 
subdivisions shall meet the minimum 
dimensional requirements specified in Table 19-
1. If not specified in Table 19-1 or elsewhere in 
this Article, the dimensional requirements of the 
underlying zoning district shall apply. 

B. Perimeter Building Setback. A building setback 
shall be required around the perimeter of the 
existing tract proposed for subdivision (excluding 
access points) as specified in Table 19-1. The 
land area included in the perimeter setback 
may be counted toward the calculation of open 
space. The area within the perimeter setback 
along external roads shall be designated as a 
“no cut” area in order to preserve existing tree 
canopy.

Table 19-1: Dimensional Requirements for Conservation Residential Development Subdivisions

Rural 
District1 

Low Density-1 
District (without 

city water)

Low Density-1 
District (with 
city water)

Low Density 
District

TRACT 

Min tract size 10 acres 5 acres 5 acres 5 acres

Min tract frontage 100 ft 100 ft 100 ft 50 ft

Perimeter 
Building 
Setback

From external roads 100 ft 30 ft 30 ft 30 ft

From other tract 
boundaries

50 ft 20 ft 20 ft 20 ft

LOT

Min Lot Area 32,000 sf 16,000 sf 8,000 sf 6,000 sf

Min Road Frontage 40 ft 40 ft 40 ft 40 ft

Min Lot Width at Building Line 75 ft 75 ft 60 ft 60 ft

Min Front Setback 15 ft 15 ft 15 ft 15 ft

Min Rear Setback 20 ft 20 ft 15 ft 15 ft

Min Side Setback 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft 10 ft

Max Building Coverage 30% 35% 40% 45%

Max Impervious Coverage 35% 40% 45% 60%

1 New lots in the Rural District that are created as part of a CRD that are less than 1 acre in size may utilize an approved 
 Subsurface Disposal System

44 of 48



K:\Boards\PLANNING\MINOR PROJECT REVIEW COMMITTEE\Project Approvals\2023 List of Minor Project Approvals in 
2022.docx 

DATE:  January 13, 2023 
 
TO: Planning Board 
 
FROM: Mari Brunner, Senior Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Update on Minor Project Review Committee Approvals for 2022 
 
 
The following projects were reviewed by the Minor Project Review Committee (MPRC) during 2022 
 
 

 
Final Approvals: 
 
1. SPR-01-22 – Davis Oil Propane Tanks – 14 Rose Ln – Applicant and owner Davis Oil Company 

Inc. proposes to install two 30,000-gal propane storage tanks on the property located at 14 Rose Ln 
(TMP# 120-008-000-000-000). The property is 1.6-ac in size and is located in the Industrial District. 
 
Status: Site Plan signed on August 5, 2022. Received a building permit and floodplain development 
permit in November 2022. 

 
2. SPR-470, Modification #1 – Cheshire Medical Center – 62 Maple Ave – Applicant SVE 

Associates, on behalf of owner Cheshire Medical Center, proposes to construct a 2,400-sf canopy 
on the former Peerless Insurance Co. building, modify the parking configuration, and install a new 
travel lane on the property located at 62 Maple Ave (TMP# 227-006-000-000-000). The site is 50-ac 
in size and is located in the Industrial Park District. 
 
Status: Site Plan signed on May 24, 2022. This approval was later superseded by administrative 
approval for SPR-470, Modification #2, where the scope of work was reduced.  

 
 
Conditional Approvals (still pending final approval): 

 
3. SPR-881, Modification #2 – Ramunto’s – 342 Winchester St - Applicant Sampson Architects, on 

behalf of owner Riverside Improvements LLC, proposes to renovate the eastern tenant space and 
build an addition approximately 321 sf in size on the building located at 342 Winchester St (TMP 
#111-004-000-004-000) for use as a Ramunto’s restaurant. The site is 0.68 ac in size and is part of 
the larger Riverside Plaza located in the Commerce District. 
 
Status: Waiting for conditions precedent to be met prior to issuance of final approval by the MPRC.  

45 of 48



K:\Boards\PLANNING\Applications\Administrative Approvals\2023 List of Administrative Approvals in 2022.docx 

DATE:  January 13, 2023 
 
TO: Planning Board 
 
FROM: Mari Brunner, Senior Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Update on Administrative Planning Project Approvals for 2022 
 
 
The following projects were administratively approved by Planning Staff during 2022: 
 
 

1. SPR-651, Mod. #1 – PoshHaus Lighting – 104 Emerald St: Applicant Todd Rogers, on behalf of 
owner RK Parisi Enterprises Inc., proposes to install new lighting on the building located at 104 
Emerald Street (TMP# 584-069-000). The property is 0.62-ac in size and is located in the Downtown 
Growth District. 
 

2. SPR-927, Mod. #12B – Old Navy – 26 Ash Brook Rd #2B: Applicant KPR Centers LLC, on behalf 
of owner Keene MZL LLC, proposes to combine and renovate two existing tenant spaces into one 
tenant space for Old Navy in the building located at 26 Ash Brook Road #2B (TMP# 109-027-000-
003-000) located in the Monadnock Shopping Plaza. The property is 0.75-ac in size and is located 
in the Commerce District. 

 
3. SPR-927, Mod. #11A – GameStop Relocation – 2 Ash Brook Rd #12B: Applicant KPR Centers 

LLC, on behalf of owner Keene MZL LLC, proposes to relocate GameStop into one of the tenant 
spaces at 2 Ash Brook Rd #12B (TMP# 109-027-000-010-012) in the Monadnock Marketplace and 
make minor modifications to the exterior of the tenant space, including the installation of new rooftop 
equipment and a new entry door. The site is 1.64-ac in size and is located in the Commerce District. 

 
4. SPR-794, Mod. #3 – Monadnock Family Services – 40 Avon St: Applicant Monadnock Land 

Planning, on behalf of owner Antioch University, proposes a change of use from a university/college 
to a mixture of uses including university/college, clinic, and office space in the building located at 40 
Avon Street (TMP# 577-041-000). The property is 5.69-ac in size and is located in the Commerce 
District. 

 
5. SPR-362, Mod. #1 – Alpine Bike Works – 15 King Ct: Applicant Alpine Bike Works, on behalf of 

owner Trombly Raette F. Living Trust, proposes a change of use from a fitness center to a bicycle 
shop in the building located at 15 King Ct (TMP# 112-022-000). The parcel is 0.28-ac in size and is 
located in the Low Density District. 

 
6. SPR-03-22 – Fairfield’s EV Charging Stations – 434 & 440 Winchester St: Applicant Brickstone 

Land Use Consultants, on behalf of owner, 434-440 Winchester LLC, proposes to install two EV 
charging stations on the Fairfield Kia property located at 440 Winchester Street (TMP# 115-004-000) 
using power provided by the Fairfield Cadillac building located at 434 Winchester Street (TMP# 115-
003-000).  

 
7. SPR-870, Mod. #1 – Rooftop Solar Array – 310 Marlboro St: Applicant Revision Energy, on behalf 

of owner Marlboro St. LLC, proposes to install a rooftop solar array on the property at 310 Marlboro 
St (TMP# 595-001-000). The site is 4.25-ac in size and is located in the Business Growth & Reuse 
District. 

 
8. SPR-914, Mod. #7 – Monadnock Affordable Housing Renovation – 104 Castle St: Applicant 

Warrenstreet Architects, on behalf of owner Monadnock Affordable Housing Corporation, proposes 
to reconstruct and add approximately 369 sf to the footprint of the multi-unit building located at 104 
Castle Street (TMP# 567-006-000) that was destroyed by a fire in March 2021. The parcel is 10 acres 
in size and is located in the Medium Density District. 

46 of 48



K:\Boards\PLANNING\Applications\Administrative Approvals\2023 List of Administrative Approvals in 2022.docx 

 
 
9. SPR-12-17, Mod. #1 – Archway Farm Equipment Shed – 183 Arch St: Applicant and owner 

Florenz Family Rev. Trust, proposes to construct a 1,200 sf pole barn on the property at 183 Arch St 
(TMP# 107-001-000). The property is 53 acres in size and is located in the Agriculture District. 

 
10. SPR-05-22 – Mini-Splits & Fence – 88 Dunbar St: Applicant James Rogers Heating Services, on 

behalf of owner Kevin R. Beal, proposes to install three mini-splits in a 16-ft by 6-ft fenced enclosure 
along the northern portion of the east building facade on the property located at 88 Dunbar Street 
(TMP# 585-006-000). The property is 0.33 acres in size and is located in the Downtown Core District. 

 
11. SPR-05-21, Mod. #1 – Physical Therapy Office Façade Changes – 561 Main St: Applicant Logan 

Gorgulu, on behalf of owner Sadettin Gorgulu, proposes changes to the exterior building materials 
for the new physical therapy office at 561 Main Street (TMP# 114-029-000) that were approved by 
the Minor Project Review Committee as part of the Minor Site Plan Application, SPR-05-21, in 
September 2021. The property is 0.45 acres in size and is located in the Commerce District. 

 
12. SPR-503, Mod. #3 – Antioch University Classrooms – 255 West St: Applicant Scully Architects, 

on behalf of owner Mascoma Bank, proposes to convert one of the vacant tenant spaces in the 
building at 255 West Street (TMP# 576-012-000) to classroom and meeting space for Antioch 
University. The parcel is 2.95 acres in size and is located in the Commerce District. 

 
13. SPR-06-22 – Balcony – 109 Washington St: Applicant and owner MJMC Properties LLC, proposes 

to construct a second floor balcony with a pergola on the east facade of the building located at 109 
Washington Street (TMP #553-094-000). The property is 0.32 acres in size and is located in the 
Office District. 

 
14. SPR-972, Mod. #8 – Colony Mill Casino Conversion to Apartments – 210-222 West St: Applicant 

and owner Brady Sullivan Keene Properties LLC, proposes to convert the existing casino building 
into five apartments on the Colony Mill property located at 210-222 West Street (TMP# 576-009-
000). The property is 6.5 acres in size and is located in the Commerce District. 

 
15. SPR-362, Mod. #2 – Alpine Bike Works Lighting & Site Modifications – 15 King Ct: Applicant 

Alpine Bike Works LLC, on behalf of owner A Team Holdings LLC, proposes to install exterior lighting 
and make minor site modifications on the Alpine Bike Works property located at 15 King Ct (TMP 
#112-022-000). The site is 0.28 acres in size and is located in the Low Density District. 

 
16. SPR-927, Mod. #14 – Dialysis Center – 14 Ash Brook Rd #9: Applicant SVE Associates, on behalf 

of owner Keene MZL LLC, proposes a change of use from retail to a dialysis center and other minor 
associated site changes in one of the vacant tenant spaces located at 14 Ash Brook Road #9 (TMP 
#109-027-000-007-008) in the Monadnock Marketplace Plaza. The parcel is 1.01 acres in size and 
is located in the Commerce District. 

 
17. SPR-794, Mod. #4 – MFS Exterior Building Color Change – 40 Avon St: Applicant Scully 

Architects, on behalf of owner Monadnock Community Service Center Inc., proposes to change the 
exterior building colors on the property at 40 Avon St (TMP #577-041-000). The property is 5.69 
acres in size and is located in the Commerce District. 

 
18. SPR-914, Mod. #8 – Monadnock Affordable Housing Renovation Alteration – 104 Castle St: 

Applicant Cheshire Builders Inc., on behalf of owner Monadnock Affordable Housing Corp, proposes 
to modify the scope of work for renovations to the building at 104 Castle Street (TMP# 567-006-000) 
from the original approval issued for SPR-914, Mod. 7 to include the removal and reconstruction of 
the exterior building walls, amongst other minor exterior building modifications. The parcel is 10 acres 
in size and is located in the Medium Density District. 

 

47 of 48



K:\Boards\PLANNING\Applications\Administrative Approvals\2023 List of Administrative Approvals in 2022.docx 

19. SPR-04-21, Mod. #1 – Hundred Nights Shelter Windows & Site Modifications – 122 Water St: 
Applicant Market Square Architects, on behalf of owner Hundred Nights Inc., proposes to change 
the design of the windows, modify the lighting, change the layout of on-site walkways, and modify 
the grading for the Hundred Nights Shelter property at 122 Water Street (TMP# 585-027-000). The 
property is 0.62 acres in size and is located in the Downtown Growth District. 

 
20. SPR-08-22 – KSC Science Center Telecommunications Equipment – 65 Appian Way: Applicant 

T-Mobile Northeast LLC, on behalf of owner the University System of NH, proposes to install 
telecommunications equipment and other associated equipment along the western facade of the 
Keene State College Science Center building located at 65 Appian Way (TMP #591-001-000-016-
000). This property is located in the High Density District. 

 
21. SPR-470, Mod. #2 – CMC Entryway & Parking Modifications – 62 Maple Ave: Applicant SVE 

Associates, on behalf of owner Cheshire Medical Center, proposes to reduce the scope of work 
approved as part of the Minor Project, SPR-470 Modification #1, to include the renovation of the 
existing entryway along the western building facade and modifications to the parking configuration in 
this area on the property at 62 Maple Ave (TMP #227-006-000). The parcel is 50 acres in size and 
is located in the Industrial Park District. 

 
22. SPR-972, Mod. #9 – Former Colony Mill Casino Mechanical Door – 210-222 West St: Applicant 

and owner Brady Sullivan Keene Properties LLC, proposes to install a mechanical door along the 
southern building facade, install a new brick pathway, and relocate landscaping near the former 
casino building on the property at 210-222 West St (TMP #576-009-000). The site is 6.49-ac in size 
and is located in the Commerce District. 

 
23. SPR-10-17, Mod. #1 – Vision Center Site Modifications – 171 West St: Applicant and owner, 

Tuthill Properties LLC, proposes modifications to the Vision Center property at 171 West Street 
(TMP# 576-019-000), including minor exterior building changes, reconfiguring the parking area, and 
grading changes. The property is 0.6 acres in size and is located in the Downtown Transition District. 

 
24. SPR-870, Mod. #3 – Contour Fine Tooling Condensers – 310 Marlboro St: Applicant Michael 

Petrovick Architects, on behalf of owner 310 Marlboro St LLC, proposes to install condensers at the 
southwest corner of the building located at 310 Marlboro St (TMP #595-001-000). The property is 
4.25 acres in size and is located in the Business Growth and Reuse District. 

 
 
 

48 of 48


	2023_01_23_pb_agenda
	City of Keene Planning Board
	AGENDA
	Monday, January 23, 2023   6:30 PM City Hall, 2nd Floor Council Chambers
	I. Call to Order – Roll Call
	II. Election of Chair, Vice Chair and Steering Committee
	III. Minutes of Previous Meetings – December 19, 2022

	Minutes
	Keene Ext Request_Received 01-08-23
	Summit Packaging Mini-Packet
	Application_Received 12-16-22
	Affidavit_Received 12-16-22
	Narrative_Received 12-16-22
	Plan Set_REVISED_Received 01-09-23_REDUCED
	Trip Generation Memo_Received 01-09-23
	Egress Light Cut Sheet_REVISED_Received 12-22-22
	Exterior Wall Bracket Light Cut Sheet_Received 12-22-22

	Amendments to Subdivision Regulations_011323
	Article 19_Subdivision Regulations
	2023 List of Minor Project Approvals in 2022
	2023 List of Administrative Approvals in 2022



